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Introduction from
the President and
Chief Executive Officer

lan Ramsey

President 2020-2021
Amanda Stranack
Chiefl Execulive Officer

As a charity, the British Small Animal
Veterinary Association (BSAVA) strategy
and aclivities are core 1o delivery of
our vision and mission. We are here io
drive excellence in veterinary praclice (o
improve the health and wellare of smatt
animals and (hat role has never been
more important than through the 2020
pandermic and beyond.

Throughout the year. as well as our
response (o the pandemic oullined here.
we have conltinued 1o work to meel our
aims 1o provide the best science and
educalion resources to our members.

We work with, and support, the
wider veterinary profession in the UK
and around the world. Internationally
the BSAVA is a member of lhe
Federation of European Companion
Animal Veterinary Associalions
(FECAVA) and the World Small Animal
Velerinary Association (WSAVA). These

organisations provide forums (o share
knowledge and expertise on issues
tha aifect the vetennary profession
globally. In the past year. these
networks have proved invaluable,
enabling us (o quickly share resources
and information criticat (o our
responses internationally and at home

2020 initially saw progress against

our strategic objectives outlined

inour 2019-2021 plan. | lowever,

Ihe COVID-19 pandemic caused
considerable disruption and this report
slarts wilh a review of our response (o
that mosl serious of challenges as well
s reflection on some of the innovations
as a result. The report then continues

by defining our strategy going forwards
and concludes with updates on the
activities being delivered by our staff and
volunteers who work closely together
across BSAVA,

Throughout all of this time the
BSAVA continued to promote high
standards of veterinary education and
veterinary care of small animals for the
public benefit.

RESPONSE TO THE
PANDEMIC

Early in February 2020, BSAVA Board
started (o consider the potential
impact of a novel coronavirus that
had first been detected in China
and had recently spread to llaly with
devastaling consequence for the
local nospuals. The first deaths in the
UK had yet (o be reported, though a
hand(ul of people had been infecled.
Even before our meeting in March,
it was clear that BSAVA Congress
‘was under considerable threat and
two days following this meeting the
final decision was taken to cancel
the congress o avoid increasing the
risk to the profession. The decision
was widely supported throughout
the profession and we remain
grateful for Lhe many messages of
encouragement thal we received
around thal lime.

Our first priority was to provide much
needed guidance 1o small animal vets
and a range of small animal businesses
such as kennels about measures that
could be taken lo reduce person 1o
person contact whilst maintaining the
health and safely of our members,
their clients and their animals. Many
volunteers helped our Head of Policy
and Communications. Adrienne
Conroy. in this process and we are
grateful to them all.

Qur second priority was Lo move
all our echucational efforts 10 an
online formal. Our Educalion team
had already launched Learn Onfine
in January and the BSAVA Library
provided the platform io host different
formats and content. As a result we
were well placed wilh technology and
infrastructure 1o transfer our other core
aclivities to online provision, which you
can read more about in this report.

This was achieved whilst al the same
ume transferring all our staff to home
working and our thanks go o the
dedicated Woodrow House staff who
rose to the challenges magnificently.
We would like 10 thank them all on
behalf of the whole Association for
their efforts.

As the pandemic progressed from
the spring into early summer it
became clear that Congress 2021 was
also under threat from the restrictions
imposed by the virus, Again, we
quickly took the decisive step Lo
move congress online and engaged
in a rapid consullation process (o
develop a novel allernative Lo creale
the most engaging virtual event we
could. We are very excited about the
2021 Congress Programme - we have
adapted the delivery of CPD 1o the
online environmenlt while increasing
he ways delegates can engage in the
event, There will be a lot (o learn from
this new format of detivery that we
can take forward into our planning for
Congress 2022

GOVERNANCE

We held our first hybrig Annual
General Meeling (AGM) in May as we
adapted our response 1o meel our
legal obligations, and a further online
General Meeting in November. This
meeting enabled us to change our
Articles of Association; going lorward
we can now hold hybrid or entirely
online General Meelings as needed.
‘We hope Lhis will enable a greater
number of members o engage in his
important aspect of the Association’s
governance whilst also increasing
the clficiency of our processes. The
November meeling also saw the
confirmation that our Veterinary
Nurse members can now engage in
all aspects of the activities of BSAVA,
They can vole at the AGM and.

+ importantly. can hold all volunteer

posts within the Association ensuring
full participation at all levels.

STRATEGIC REVIEW

During the latler part of 2020 we
conducted a review of our strategy
as our current sirategic period was
coming (o end. The pandemic had
disrupted our plans and activilies to
some extent but lot of progress has
been made around the development
of both education and science
resources for our members and the
wider profession. { lowever, rather
than pursue the old plans Lo their
conclusion, we decided that a new
strategic plan 1o deal wilh the changes
in economic, societal and professional
spheres associaled wilh the double
chailenges of Brexil and the pandemic
'was required.

Purpose

to drive excellence
veserinary pracice o
improve the healih and
welfare of small animals

Mission

10 enable the community
of srall 2nimal veierinary
professionals 10 develop
their knowledge and

skills through leading:
edge education, scientific
research and collaboration.

Strategic
Pillars and

Aims

Community

We will grow our community,
both through membership
and the development of
wider engagement with

the small anirmal veterinary
professions.

M Education

i and Science

We wilt advance the

small animat vezerinary
professions through the
provision of outstanding
professional developrnent
‘combined with the curation
and development of
knowledge.

Our revised plan emphasises the piliars of
community alongside education and science.
Benealh these pillars and associated objectives
there are the foundations of good governance,
IT infrastructure. our people (both siaff and
volunieers) and suslainability praclices thal are
vital lo any modern charily. We look forward to
sharing more with you on this soon,
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Trustees’ Annual

Report

For the year ended 31st December 2020

The trustees present the Annual
Report and the Financial Stalements
of the British Small Animal Veterinary
Association {BSAVA) for Lhe year ended
315l December 2020. The stalements
appear in the format required by the
Statement of Recommended Praclice,
Accounting and Reporting by Charilies
applicable to charities preparing their-
accounts in accordance with FRS
102. The report and statements also
comply with the Companies Acl 2006
s lhe BSAVA was incorporaled by
guarantee on 20th July 1993. It has
no share capilal and is a registered
charity.

The guarantee of each member
is limited 1o E£1. The governing
document s Lhe Arlicles of Association
of the Company. The trusiees of the
Association are also the directors of
the Company for the purposes of
company law.

MEMBERSHIP
SUBSCRIPTIONS AND
MEMBER SERVICES

Membership

The 2020 pandemic has impacted
our members and for some their
ability 1o renew. An early decision
was laken Lo extend membership
for all members Lhat were due to
renew when the first lockdown was
announced. Members who were able
were encouraged Lo renew. bul for
those siruggling financially as a result
of the pandemic. or where finance
teams were on furlough, an extended
‘grace’ period was given. This was to
ensure that members did not lose
access 1o vital resources at a time
when they needed lhem most. Some
84 members requesled exiensions to
tneir membership beyond the initial
3 months given and a significant
proportion of these have now
renewed.

A key impact of the pandemic
was thal much planned aclivily was
suspended in favour of reaclive

= ABSAVA

Browse
online
library

measures 10 belter support members.
A member care telephone campaign
was launched. reaching out to
members who were due Lo renew

to establish any concerns and offer
support. This was indispensable in

promising, though it is difficult 1o
quantify impact of the pandemic.

A dedicated nurse modute originally
planned for late 2020 was delayed
with release anticipated in 2021.

gaining a grealer understa

ol our members’ experiences and
sitvations. Conversely, the mentoring
programme which was due Lo enter
a second phase of pilot was pul

on hold. We are now reviewing the
menltoring programme with a view to
re-launching in 2022.

In August 2020 BSAVA parinered
with Vel2Vel 1o launch VETbytes. a
mobile point-of-care clinical support
100! providing access (o evidence-
based information. VETbytes is offered
10 BSAVA members for free or al a
special discounted rate (dependent
on membership grade) as a member
benefit. Initial lake-up has been

ship p

BSAVA membership is predominantly
based on career stage. with
membership categories for students,
recent graduates. fully gualificd and
relired practitioners, The primary
differentation between subscripuons is
pricing, with largely consistent benefits
across all categories. A core objective
for 2021 is to scope and develop more
relevanl and targeled membership
packages for different audiences.
Whilst we aim o do this across all
memberships, we will be starting with
students and recent graduates - two
groups we know have very specific
needs that are under-serviced by the
current rnernbership offer,

JSAP SUBMISSIONS BY ARTICLE TYPE 2008-2020

500
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We are also exploring aliernative
membership categories to offer a
tmore flexible approach lo rmembers
looking 10 step up or down their
membership commitments depending
on their personal circumstances.
Whilst this has been strategically the
intention for some time. the priority
10 provide added support 1o members
during a time of need has increased in
response 1o the pandemic.

Journals
Journal of Small Animat Practice
(ISAP)

JSAP published 12 monthly issues.
during 2020 containing 132 articles.
JSAP received 469 arlicle submissions
during 2020. an increase of 10%
compared with 2019. The graph
illustrates the increase in original
papers and new arlicle lypes such
as ‘images in small animal practice’
and ‘viewpoinl’ articles. and the
relative decline in the submission of
traditional case reports which are
rarely accepled. 146 articles were
accepled for publication (52% more
than in 2019).

A new editor was appointed during
2020. Nicola di Girolamo from
Oklahoma Stale University, Among
other things, Nic has been seeking lo
recruit additional Associate Editors lo
support the team and is working on
updaled author guidelines.

The appontment of a Scientific
Content Editor for BSAVA in 2019 has
led (0 more regular and increased
promotion of JSAP science. Press
releases on arlicles of particular interest
have been issued monthly. a series of
podcasts on JSAP science has been

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

launched in the BSAVA Library, and
JSAP virual issues have been created
to coincide with BSAVA promotions.

The move Lo asking members
to opt into receiving print issues
conlinues to save considerable cost
10 the Association. and also 10 the
environment in terms of printing
and mailing of unwanted print
copies, while also demonstraling the
engagement of members as more
than 1.450 members have now signed
up for print issues. Members retain
access 10 the online edition. The full
text of JSAP arlicles was accessed
online more than 716,000 times in
2020. an increase of 33% compared
with 2019 total downloads. Around
1.5% of online downloads were by
BSAVA members.

Plans for 2021 include a new design
for the journal which will help Lo
streamline production,

‘Companion

Companion is the Association’s
monthly membership publication,
the purpose of which is lo deliver
relevant, engaging and informative
CPD. at the same time as keeping
the BSAVA community informed of
BSAVA aclivities. In 2020. 12 editions
of Companion were produced.
containing some 160 arlicles. and
circulated (o eligible members with
an average monthly circulation of just
under 6,500 copies.

Companion is the most viewed
publication in the BSAVA Library. with
more than 300.000 views in 2020
{17% of 1otal views) and over 17.000
full text accesses (7.75% of total full
text accesses).

2018 2019 2020

Limited adveruising space was offered
in Companion during 2020. Although
only a handful of advertisements were
booked, this revenue helps 10 offset
the costs of production.

Changes were made (o the paper
stock in 2020 which reduced print costs.
but also contributed {along with fewer
Inserts) 10 a significant reduction in the
cost of mailing Companion issues.

Commissioning of CPD conlent
continues apace and in 2021 this
should start to allow us (o develop
themed issues. We also plan 10 review
the fuifilment of Companion as further
cost savings may be possible,

Policy

With the impact of COVID-19
reverberaling \hroughout the
profession during much of 2020,
BSAVA Policy & Communications
prioritised providing vets and their
clients with resources to support them
during the pandemic. The dedicated
COVID section of the BSAVA website
facilitated easy access 10 our extensive
resources which were made freely
available Lo all members of the
profession.

Resources were produced through
BSAVA collaborating with a broad
spectrum of organisations. Public
Health England (PHE), National t lealth
Service (N}HS) and the World Health
Organisalion (Wi 10) provided advice
on public health requirements with
Department of Business Energy
and Industrial Strategy {DBEIS) and
HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC)
providing business support assets.
Tailored guidance on practice
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processes and technical
seecific to the companion an'mat
seclor included resources from Defra,
Animal and Plant | lealth Agency
(APIA), Royal College of Veterinary
Surgeons (RCVS). British Velerinary
Association (BVA), Federation of
Companion Animal Veterinary
Associations (FECAVA), World Small
Animal Veterinary Association (WSAVA),
Animal Behaviour and Training Council
(ABTC) and our affiliate associations to
name but a few. The BSAVA's Toolkit
for vels covered guidance on remole
consulling, vaccination, neutering,
anaesthesia, COVID testing and a Triage
Tool which was translated into other
tanguages (o supporl vels globally.
BSAVA also collaborated with
national animal welfare organisations
and charilies to ensure that consistent
advice and guidance was available
Lo clients of velerinary practices
whether pel owners, breeders or
other animal-relaled business owners
such as boarding, grooming and
re-homing services. Co-creating
dedicaled resources meant clients
could be directed to readily accessible

ation thereby minimising any
further draw on stretched praclice
resources. Petl owners were also
advised on how 10 access veterinary
praclices and services thal would
maintain their pet’s heallh and welfare,
and how 1o Lackle issues arising from
COVID constraints whether medical or
behavioural.

By working collaboratively with our
external stakeholder network and UK
Government, BSAVA ensured elements
retevant Lo small animal veterinary
praclice were laken into consideration
and that consistency was maintained
throughout national guidance issued
Lo the profession, pet owners and
related businesses.

Despile the demands of the COVID
crisis, BSAVA continued to contibute
Lo consuliations, calls for evidence
(CIEs) and Policy Positions although
these were reduced in number given
the demands of COVID. C(Es included
the welfare of primales kepl as pels
(England). rescue and re-homing
sanctuaries, third party sales (Wales)
and livestock worrying (Scotland).

SOME OF THE UK ORGANISATIONS WE WORK WITH

« Animal and Plant Health Agency
(APHA)

« Animal Welfare Network Wales
(AWNW)

» The Animal Behaviour & Training
Council (ABTC)

« Association of Veterinary
Anaesthetists (AVA)

« British Animal Rescue and
Trauma Association (BARTA)

« Battersea (Dogs & Cats Home)
- Blue Cross.

- Brachycephalic Working Group
(BWG)

- British Veterinary Association
{BVA)

« British Veterinary Nursing
Association (BVNA)

» British Veterinary Zoological
Society (BVZS)

- Cats Protection

- Department for the Environment
and Rural Affairs (Defra)

- Dogs Trust
« International Cat Care (1CC)
«The Kennel Club

+ National Office of Animal Health
(NOAH)

- Peopie Dispensary for Sick
Animals (PDSA)

- Pet food Manufacturers
Association {(PFMA)

« Pet Industry Federation (PIF)

* Royal College of Veterinary
Surgeons (RCVS)

« Royal Society for the Prevention
of Cruelty to Animals (RSPCA)

« Society of Practising Veterinary
Surgeons (SPVS)

« Scottish Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals
(SSPCA]

+ Veterinary Medicines
Directorate (VMD)

Policy Positions included TB.
Microchipping of Cats and Under our
Care which encompassed Continuity
of Care. Remole Prescribing and
Remole Referrals

BSAVA continued 1o work
collaboratively with nationat
organisations that influence some
of the topical issues impacting the
health and wellare of our clienls’ pets.
These included the Canine and Feline
Sector Group (CFSG) and the Animal
Wellare Nelwork for Wales (AWNW)
where, aside from exlensive work on
COVID related resources. a BSAVA-
chaired Working Group finalised and
launched the CFSG Guidance on Dog
Conformation to support breeders,
sellers, buyers and vets lackle societal
issues relating to animal health and
wellare. Also, as a member of BWG,
BSAVA worked with the BVA L0
produce a Brachy Toolkil to support
vets in praclice when managing
orachycephalic breed-related issues.

BSAVA worked closely wilh Defra
to contribute 10 and support Lheir
national Petfishing campaign which
highlighted unscrupulous, illegat
puppy and kilten sellers Lo the public
and in particular. prospective pel
owners. Resulling media coverage
polentially reached over three million
individuals.

In olher areas BSAVA continued to
work with external stakeholders on
improving guidance for vets involved
in the licensing of breeding and
boarding establishments, worked with
BARTA L0 develop emergency incident
response wraining for vets in practice,
and facilitated VMD's review of their
Special Impont Scheme websile.

Although COVID Lok precedence
during the year. the prospect of
Brexil was ever present. BSAVA
continued o liaise with Defra and
APHA and supporied dissemination
of communications when final
instructions for OVs on pel travel
were issued. IL also facilitaied Defra
communications regarding avian
influenza by maintaining updates
for the profession dependent on
escalating numbers of outbreaks
throughout the UK.

Whilst policy formulation to support
the profession and the clients and
businesses it serves is integral Lo the
work of BSAVA Policy, communicaling
policy outputs and ensuring the voice
of our organisation is heard is also
core o ils remil. Aside from crealing
COVID content for the BSAVA websile.
significant resources were aliocated

10 developing communications wilth
our external stakeholders. including
extensive guidance and social media
assels. Numerous news arlicles were
produced whilst media requests
for presidential quotes, whether for
internal or external use by the nationat
press, were regularly facilitated.
Through our communications. BSAVA
continued to influence outcomes
relevant Lo ils sector.

As ever, BSAVA policy is driven
by external evenls which are often
unprediclable given the nature of
the external landscape. with 2020
epilomising such unpredictability.
For 2021. BSAVA Policy &
Communications will continue to
serve members needs and ensure
members’ views are reflected in
national policy-making activities. it
will also aim to influence outcomes in
those areas thal impact our profession
whilst continuing Lo improve animal
health and wellare.

€6 BSAVA continued to work
collaboratively with national
organisations that influence
some of the topical issues
impacting the health and
welfare of our clients’ pets. 9%

Scientific

BSAVA's Scientific Committee
developed a review schedule for
exssting scientific materials - such as
Scienufic Position Statements and
Scientific Information Documents =
and began reviewing the first of these
documents. The Commiltee has also
developed review processes to aid
clarity for future commiliee members.
To date, the review of Lhe ‘Bovine
tuberculosis (TB) and badgers’ position
statement has been completed. and
(he "Neutering of Dogs, Cals, Rabbils
and Ferrels' position stalement has
been updated with regard to neutering
of cats, and further work relaling Lo
neutering of dogs is ongoing. The
Committee also published a new
Scientific Informauion Document on
the use of cannabidiol (CBD) in dogs
and cats. These documents will be
reviewed on a rolling five-yearly basis
and therelore will continue to form
part of the Commiltee’s future work.

The Committee also began a review
of ine current BSAVA Research Board
- an area of the 8SAVA websile where
peonle are able to find and support
clinical research projects from BSAVA
members ~ with a view to improving
visibility and usage of the webpages. In
2021. the Commitlee aims to develop
a new science-based e-newsletter for
BSAVA members, highlighting research
and other publications of interest.

The Commitlee’s work in retation to
obesily in pets is ongoing. and whilst
plans to facilitate raining and workshops
at Congress were not delivered due to
the switch o a virtual Congress. planning
for future years continues.

Members of Scientific Commitiee
continue 1o represent BSAVA and
input into external stakeholder
activities. such as ABTC, ICC. the Cat
Population Control Group (CPCG) and
Small Animal Surveillance Network
(SAVSNET) External Advisory Panel
{EAP). ensuring thal the velerinary view
is reflected in thew activities.
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PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES

Congress

Back in January 2020, BSAVA
Congress was progressing well.
However, no-one could have
predicted the impacl that was on
the horizon due to COVID-19. As the
pandemic slarted o evolve it was
fundamenial o take some significant
decisions Lo ensure:

« Limitation of financial exposure
and risk was underiaken as an
immediate course of aclion

- Consideration and protection
of the health and well-being of
the Congress atlendees and
slakeholders

* That BSAVA maintained its integrity
based on the outcome of any
decisions made.

Whilst it was unknown at the start of
the pandemic how the siluation would
develop, we made the decision thal
postponement of Congress to later in
the year was not an option for such a
large event. As Lhe pandemic situation
developed, we kept all stakeholders
informed and on 13 March we
ook the decision to cancel BSAVA
Congress 2020. From February 2020
we had secn a significant fall off in
registrations and exhibition bookings.
It was tooking increasing likely that the
UK Government would impose a ban
on large gatherings. A coordinaled
communicalions operalion was.
then put into action to notify all
stakeholders and press covering
multiple platforms.

Full refunds were undentaken for
delegate registration fees and this
process was compleled in May.
Exhibitors and sponsors were also
offered refunds or the option to
transfer to the 2021 congress, The
process ran exiremely successfully with
individuals being kept up (o date with
progress. All this had Lo happen under

remote working conditions as the UK
went into lockdown on 23rd March.

The news of the cancellation of
Congress was understandably a
disappoiniment bul was posilvely
received by the membership and reguler
participants, as concermns were already
being voiced wilhin the profession aboul
atiendance al face-to-face meetings. The
refund process was received exiremely
well by those involved.

Congress On Demand

To ensure we maintained
engagement wilh our membership
and community. we launched
Congress On Demand, with the aim
of providing quality CPD despile
the loss of the face Lo face event.
Scheduled speakers recorded their
prepared presentations which were
packaged together in the BSAVA
Library under the Congress On
Demand brand. Congress exhibitors
were also inviled 10 sponsor webinars.
We had a posilive culcome from Lhis.
wilh the support from Lhe following
organisations.

+ Bayer plc

+ Hill's Pet Nutrition

« IVC Evidensia

+ Karl Storz

« Nationwide Laboratories

« Pel Remedy

+ Wiley

By the end of the year there had
been 5,916 video podcast views for
Congress On Demand in total. In
addition 10 this there were more than
90.000 abstract level views (which do
nol require the user to be logged in)
and over 14,200 full text views (leclure
summaries in Lext format).
Summit

Summit 2020 was also postponed
for a year due lo the pandemic. The
next event is scheduled for 29th -
30th November 2021.
Future plans

As the pandemic evolved and the
ongoing impact became clear. the

decision was taken Lo pivol Congress
2021 10 online, running an immersive
virlual event and investing in a robust
and user-friendly platform. Given the
situation at the end of 2020 this was
clearly the correct decision and we
look forward Lo an exciling event in
March 2021.

A lot of work has been done to
reformat Congress 10 fil 3 virtual
event format. wilh the experience
of participants on equal footing
with the scientfic learning. Looking
further forward, we can't wait lo
hold our first Congress in the award
winning Manchester Central venue,
now scheduled for 2022, and will be
reviewing the stralegy for the delivery
of BSAVA Congress for 2022 onwards.

Education
Continuing professional
development (CPD)

Despite the significant challenges
to CPD provision as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic. the Education
Depariment was able 1o deliver the
majority of the planned programme.
The Postgraduate Certificale
programmes were rapidly redesigned
to be delivered online, practical
elements of the Vel Nurse Meril
Awards were delivered ‘al home' via
video platform and the popular BSAVA
Dispensing Course was accredited for
online delwery for the first time.

2020 saw the very timely launch
of the new BSAVA Learn Online
CPD programme. Ten courses were
delivered in 2020 with over 400
delegales atlending one or more
courses. The virlual delivery format
aliracted attendees from Europe.
North America, Canada, Asia and
Australasia and the feedback has
been highly positive. For 2021, we
will deliver ten Learn Online courses
aimed al vels, two courses open

(o both vets and nurses and one
course purely for nurses. These will
be delivered in addition to the BSAVA
Learn@Lunch Webinars, a monthly

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2020 2020
“in person’ Regions Total
} evenis  ow events
Number !
of courses 105 109 125 121 14 92 2 7 3
umber
ofdelegates 2470 2681 3070 3004 2766

The proposal for Regions 10 pilol the mentoring

in 2020 was S

d will be for future

2172 i 494 2210 2704

during 2021,

AFFILIATE GROUPS

- Association of British Veterinary
Acupuncturists {ABVA)

- Association of Charity Vets (ACV})

+ Association of Veterinary
Anaesthetists (AVA)

« Association of Veterinary Soft
Tissue Surgeons (AVSTS)

« British Association of Veterinary
Emergency and Critical Care
(BAVECC)

« British Association of Veterinary
Ophthalmologists {BrAVO)

mernber benefit for hoth vel and
nurse members.

Although one Vel Nurse Merit Award
(VNMA) had 1o be posiponed as a resull
of the pandemic, it was stil possible
(o enrol 79 nurses across four awards
offered in 2020. In March, a brand new
and highly popular VNMA in Behaviour
was launched, the first award designed ©©
be delivered solely online. We conlinue
1o develop our next VNMA in Nuition,
which is due 16 taunch in Spring 2021.

Our current Posigraduate Certificates
conlinue 1o be successful with a
further 81 students gradualing in
2020, bringing our lotal number
of graduates across the four
programmes up to 449. 2020 also saw
the approval and accreditation of the
new BSAVA Posigraduate Ceruficale
in Small Animal Diagnostic Imaging
by Nottingham Trent Universily: this
course will take its first student Intake
in January 2022 and will oe the first of
the Certificates to contain an elective
component allowing students (o
personalise their study.

The BSAVA Maslers in Clinical
Veterinary Research had a record five
enrolments in 2020 and the second
student graduating from the course

£ BSAVA

nowo

* British Bee Veterinary

Veterinary Zoological

for

Association (BBVA) Society {BVZS)
« British Veterinary .
Association (BVBA} Veterinary Diagnostic Imaging

- British Veterinary Dental
Association (BVDA)

+ British Veterinary Dermatology
Study Group (BVDSG}

« British Veterinary Rehabiliation
and Sports Medicine Association
(BVRSMA)

« British Veterinary Orthopaedic
Association (BVOA)

wilh distinction. Four students have
enrolled on the course in 2021,

The British Dermatologicat Nursing
Group {BDNG) was awardeg affiliate
status in 2020.

Regional CPD

During 2020, Regional CPD provision
evolved to meet the needs our
members under the confines of ihe
pandemic and during the spring and
summer we offered pre-recorded
lectures in place of “in person” events.
However. the colleclive volunteer
body thal organises regional events
felt that more could be done and
implemented a new initiative to celiver
interactive events with some bonus
information lo enhance participation
in the live element of the event From
inception to launch some six weeks
later. ‘Regions Now' came into being
and has been a successful member
benefil. attracting greater numbers of
allendance at regional events,

The second iteration of the new
event Vets Cymru was a victim of the
pandemnic and it was not possible
to replace this event at short notice.
1owever. plans for Vets Cymru 2021 are
underway and many of the speakers and
sponsors who had commiilted 10 2020

—British & Irish Division
(EAVDI-BID)

+ Small Animal Medicine Society
(SAMSoc)

« Veterinary Cardiovascular
Society (VCS}

- British Veterinary Neurology
Society (BVNS)

‘have expressed an interest in attending
the 2021 event. if the current guidance in
place closer (o the event allows. Similarly.
the 34th BSAVA Scoltish Congress

was unable 0 go ahead. At the time of
writing, the region and team at Woodrow
1louse are making plans for a repusposed
event with a new name in 2021 - look
out for BSAVA Alba.

Attendance CPD provision and
uplake had paused from mid-March
2020 as a result of the pandemic. In
2020, all regions had aimed to provide
3 minimum of two day courses and
four evening courses across the
course of the year. All regional evening
CPD was free to BSAVA members. and
our day course cost was subsidised
35 a BSAVA Member benefit. The
number of hours of attendance CPD
provided by BSAVA Regions in 2020
that took place was 76, with 1,330
delegate hours provided by day and
evening courses. ‘Regions Now"
online CPD provided an additional 21
hours of CPD with an additional 6,630
delegate hours. providing a total of
7.960 delegate hours and 97 hours of
CPD. which exceeded Lhe 2019 CPD
provision
In addition. 6 courses were recorded
and uploaded into the BSAVA Library.

|
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etSavers

Funding studies to help your pets

PetSavers

In 2020, PetSavers started a strategic
review to consider its branding
position and larget audience. and
ultimately the source of income 10
allow il Lo fund research projects
inlo companion animal health. The
intention 1o focus on engaging with
ihe velerinary profession rather than
the public, at least initially, is forming
the basis ol planning efforls to identify
fulure fundraising stralegies under (he
guidance of a fundraising consultancy.

The winning citizen science
project was launched in June 2020.
Promoled as the OAP (old age
pets) project in association with a
communicalions agency. this aims 10
develop a toolkit for use in practice
to hetp guide discussions between

vets and owners aboul their older
dogs. In-depth interviews have been
carried oul with owners and veterinary
professionals as qualilalive research
(o identify key concepts and phrases
about senior dogs which will then
be used (o design a survey Lo oblain
related quantialive findings from
a wider group of recipients. This
survey will launch later in 2021. The
Master's sludent working on SAVSNET
demographic dala as part of this
project started in Seplember 2020
Atotal of £94,146 of grant funding
was awarded 1o support 9 projecls
during 2020, excluding the citizen
science project. £204,512 including
the citizen science project. The Grants
Awarding Commitlee also oversaw
the awarding of £50.000 of funds
earmarked for SAVSNET work 1o jointly

PetSavers

@AR

old age pets research project

fund a PhD in vaccine hesitancy wilth
he University of Liverpool. which
commenced in October 2020.
The pandemic had a major impact
on sceentific research, resulting in
application numbers being down
on previous years, and the granting
of no-cost extensions 1o several
ongoing projects lo compensate
for the fact that labs were closed for
several months. More is being made
of the opportunity lo form funding
partnerships with BSAVA affiliates.
Joint funding has continued with one
of hese. the Veterinary Cardiovascular
Sociely, and PetSavers opened a
call for otner affiliates to establish
similar match-funding agreements.
The first grant (o be supported in this
way aims to open in October 2021.
A partnership with the British Hen
Wellare Trust is ongoing. bul grant
awarding has been delayed until
Seplember 2021 for reasons relating
(o the pandemic

2021 will see the completion of
the stralegic review of PelSavers and
an assessment of tried and tested
fundraising approaches (o identify
those most suiled for the long-term
financial suppori of PetSavers. The aim
is also Lo betler integrate PelSavers
within the BSAVA Lo provide stronger
links between education and science
in an evidence-based future.

€6 2021 will see
the completion

of the strategic
review of PetSavers
and an assessment
of tried and

tested fundraising
approaches to
identify those

most suited for

the long-term
financial support
of PetSavers. 99

Publications

Books

In total, 20,901 printed books
{including posters) were sold in 2020,
which is 15% less than in 2019 (though
only 4% less il sales rom Congress
2019 and a special bulk sale from 2019
are excluded). Sales had a strong end
to 2020 but the shortfall resulting from
the start of the COVD-19 pandemic
and Lhe cancellation of Congress
was nol fully recovered. ihe figures
should also be viewed in the context
of expanding digital sales, which
were fuelled to some exient by the
pandemic, Having said that. demand
for print books remains strong - 20
\itles were reprinted during the year
and in total we printed some 18.2
million pages (more than in any year
in the past eight years).

The publications team produced the
following new litles during 2020

* BSAVA Small Animal Formulary
10th edition Part A Canine & Feline
(this book was provided Lo eligible
velerinary members as a member
benefil

+ BSAVA Small Animal Formulary
10Lh edition Part B Exotic Pets
(this book was provided L0 eligible
veterinary mermbers as a loyally
reward)

* BSAVA Textbook of Veterinary
Nursing 6th edition (which sold a
record amount of more than 6600
copies in 2020)

BSAVA Cognilive Aids for

Anaesthesia in Small Animal

Practice (a new type of book

including additional online

resources)

*+ BSAVA Guide to Nulrition (an
online only resource which will be
updated and expanded over lime)

= BSAVA Manual of Canine and
Feline Endoscopy and Endosurgery
2nd edition (including around 40
videos available via the BSAVA
Library)

* Asignificant update of the BSAVA
Guide 1o the Use of Velerinary
Medicines (which is our most
accessed online resource)

* A further batch of new client
informaion leaflets relaung to
medicines.

All books budgeted for the year
were published. A (urther three books
have staried production and a further
five books have been contracled. In
addition. 9 new translated editions

UNIT SALES OF BSAVA PRINT PUBLICATIONS:

2016

2007

2018 H
2019

2020 l

T T T —

Direct sales

exc Congress

0 Congress
sales

Distributor
sales

B orer

o 5000 10000

were published and 14 new contracls
for translations agreed in 2020 in
association with local publishers.

In 2021 we hope (o publish three
manuals. a new edition of the BSAVA
Pockelbook for Veterinary Nurses
and a new 't low To’ collection. We
also intend Lo update and expand a
number of digilal resources. We plan
(o slart production on four other
books for publication in 2022 and
contract some six new titles and
new edilions as part of our ongoing
publishing programme.
The BSAVA Library

2020 saw anolher large increase
in the usage of the BSAVA Library.
with abstract-level views increasing
by 55% and full-text accesses more
than doubling compared with 2019.
Purchases (hrough the site increased
by more than 3.5 times compared
with 2019, largely due (o purchases
of Congress On Demand conltent
but also because of the launch of the
online-only BSAVA Guide to Nutrition.
The use of ‘library passes’ {either
free member passes or purchased
passes) also increased by 60% over
the previous year. Almost 12,000
individuals have logged inlo the library
since launch, with around 4,300 of
these logg'ng In for the first me
during 2020.

As well as member usage, access has
been sold to 3 number of university
libraries around the world and also
a number of velerinary praclices
who provide access 1o the manuats
for their staff. Seventeen institutions
purchased access 1o library content
for the first time diring 2020. and
all existing customers renewed their
subscription or purchased the 2020
content package.

15000 20000 25000

ABSTRACT VIEWS

2018

2019 I

o 1000000

FULL TEXT ACCESSES

2018

2019

2020 I
-

0 100000 200000

In addition (o the Congress On
Demand content and the new online
content mentioned in the books
seclion above, a ‘Webinar Library’
was launched which now includes
65 webinars and is updated monthly.
Webinars are ree 1o members and
have been accessed more than 4,200
(imes so far. The ‘colleclions’ section
of the library is being used increasingty
10 provide access to lopical content
and also to deliver bonus malerial
1o those parlicipating in CPD and
Regions Now evenls.

n 2021 we will launch a "Lecture
Library which will provide alf congress
lecture recordings in one place. We
will also work 1o develop a Video
Library' 10 showcase the more than
300 clinical videos already in the
BSAVA Library.

—_—_—
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

The Association conslantly reviews
and adapts its approach L0 ils internal
management and the services that
it delivers Lo its members. A secure
financial platform has been achieved
over a number of years, which will
enable the Association to invest in and
deliver new services. This has enabled
the Associalion to deal with and even
thrive in a number of areas during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Associaiion deficit for the
year before investment losses
was £1,124,050, which is grealer
than originally forecast due Lo the
cancellalion of Congress 2020
resulling from the COVID-19
pandemic and the changes Lo
operations caused by the pandemic.

Reserves

The trustees aim (o maintain free
reserves in unrestricted funds al a level
that allows the Associalion 10 lake
a flexible approach to its chantable
activities and o ensure that the
Association is on a sound financial
footing for years to come. Within the
unresticled funds are designaied
funds for specific projects currently
being planned and underway.

The balance held as unrestricted
funds at 31st December 2020 was

E10.648,531, {2019: £11.666.445) of
which £5997.105 (2019: £7.179.273) is
regarded as free reserves, alter allowing
for funds tred up In 1angible fixed assets
and designated {unds. The budgeled
expenditure for 2021 is £5,362.032

and currently lree reserves satisfy
111.8% of this expecled expenditure,
Usually, the trustees intend thal the free
reserves are within plus or minus 10%
of the annual budgeled expendilure

of the following year. 1 lowever.

given the impact of the pandemic

and subsequent economic recovery,
the lrustees agree thal being 1.8%
outside of the agreed tolerance was
acceptable in light of the ever changing
environment,

The wrustees review and consider this
policy when agreeing ihe designated
reserves and annual budgel each year.

The nel assets of the Association
have been split between restricted and
unrestricted funds.

Objective

Our investment objective is 1o
produce a balanced combination of
growth and some immediate income.
with the polential for capital and
income growth over the long term.

Strategy

Ihe strategy is 1o provide @ diversitied
portfolio comprising predominantly
domeslic and international equilies, as
well 3s sorne hixed inlerest, bxposure
to specialist areas (for example.
smaller companies and emerging
markets) will be low and achieved via
collective funds.

To improve diversification and
reduce volailily. an exposure of up
10 20% in alternative investment
stralegies (such as commercial
property. privale equily, hedge
funds, structured products and
other specialist areas) will usually be
included.

policy

Any investment decisions undertaken
by the lruslees must safeguard the
assels of the Association and therefore
are in accordance wilh the guidelines
laid down by the Charity Commission.

The assel allocation for each
portfolio is reviewed periodicatly, in
conjunction with the furid manager.
by the Honorary Treasurer and olher
Officers, and rebalanced if appropriate.

The slrategy is suitable for an
investor wilh an invesiment time
horizon of @ minimum of 7 years. a
moderale income requirement and an
altiude to risk which can wilhsland
some fluctiation in capital valie
and/or income. Currency exposure
rmay have an adverse impact on UK
and overseas investment returns
and currencies will not be hedged.
The dealing frequency of some
investments may be limiled.

Restrictions

The investments will be suitable for
a charity. Should the Associalion be
made aware thal animal welfare is
compromised by the companies with
are made. those

companies will be excluded from

the portiolio, In addition o this those
companies invalved in pornography
and the manufacture of arms are also

The porifolio is managed on a
reports incorporaling a valuation with
a measurement of overall investment

return, which lakes into account the
change in value, income received

The benchmark for the current

AT 3151"1 AT 31ST
DECEMBER 2020 DECEMBER 2019
£ 13
whom i
RESTRICTED FUNDS
PetSavers 1267055 1471344
excluded from the porliolio.
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
Reporting
Designated funds 2,386,505 1970019 e ! °
discretionary basis and provides
Funds already invested
in fixed assets 2264921 2516153
5918481 5958516
and all capital and incorne cash
Working capital 5997.105 | 7079273 movements.
Total funds as detaited |
on the Balance Sheet 11,915,586 | 13,437,789

More detailed description of the Reslricied Funds and Unrestricted Funds can
be found in the Notes to the Financial Stalements on pages 37 - 39.

portiolio is a composite benchmark
teflecting Brewin Dolphin Risk
Category 6-7.

Income

Income from investments will be
transferred to capital for reinvestment.
The budget for 2020 was sel at
£255.000 (2019: £190.000) and the
aclual received was £213.927 (2019
£268.402). which is lower than budget
by 16.1%.

Implementation

A mixture of direct and collective
investments 1o obtain suitable
dwersihcation will be implemented.

STRUCTURE,
GOVERNANCE AND
MANAGEMENT

The new governance structure has
been in place since the AGM in Aprit
2019, which resulling in a reduction
in the number of trustees. Changes
conlinued throughout 2020 and saw a
reduction in the number of of Working
Commuttees. International Affairs and
Membership Development committees.
were disbanded. as it was fell that their
work would be belter served by other
areas of the Associalion.

In order to initiale and manage
advances in the Association’s activities
and in the provision of services lo
members, a Board and Working
Committee structure exists. The Board
members are the President. Senior
Vice President. Vice President. Junior
Vice President. Honorary Secretary.
Honorary Treasurer. Non-Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer.
The Board is ultimalely responsible for
the aclivilies of the Association.

The members of Board and Working
Committee chairs, along wilh the
Woodrow lHouse Management Team.
sit on the Advisory & Management
(ABM) Committee. which receives
input from the Working Commitiees
and external liaison representatives.
The A&M Commillee discusses
and makes recommendations on
major projects formulaled by the
Working Committees and considers
membership matters.

The Working Committees are
made up of individuals with suitable
knowledge or expertise in the areas in
which they participate.

The Working Commiltees during the
year were as follows:

« Congress

« Education

+ PetSavers Management

+ Publications

+ Scientific.

The distribution of the investments managed by Brewin Dotphin at 315t Dacember 2020 was as (ollows

315T AT 3157

DECEMBER 2020 DECEMBER 2019

% %

UK equities 28 38

Overseas equities 47 35

Fixed interest 20 ¢ 20
Property, hedge

funds & other 5 ¢ 6

{ 100 ! 100

In addition, there were two
subcommitiees:

» Congress Programme (reports 10
Congress Committee)

- PetSavers Grants Awarding
{reports o PelSavers Management
Commitiee).

Occasionally ad hoc subcommiltees
{or working groups) with a closely
defined set of objeciives ang a
timetable are established in order 1o
manage specific projects. which arise
from time to lime.

The UK membership of the
Association is divided into twelve
geographical regions. Each Regional
Committee comprises three Officer
positions (Chairman, Secretary
and Treasurer), along with other
commiltee members.

The Council is an advisory body
which holds Board to account. The
members of Council are lwelve
Council Represenlatives. one from
each of the geographical regions of
rmembership, plus the Chairs of Audit
and Risk Commitiee (ARC) and the
Volunteer Development Commitlee
(VDC), a representalive of the Past
Presidents. and (he immediate Past
President. This commiltee is chaired
by an independent Chair of Council
and has two standing commiiltees who
repont directly to Council, these are:

« Audit and Risk {reports 1o Councill

- Volunteer Development
Committee {reports to Council).

Each Regional Commitlee organises
local day, evening and, in some cases.
weekend scientific meetings. Each
Region sends two representatives lo
the Regional Fora and one 1o Council
meelings. The Chair of Regions
is responsible for communication

between the Regional Officers and
provides support and mentoring Lo the
regional commitiees.

Truslees (other than the President.
Non-Executive Director and the CEQ)
receive no payment for their services,
but are reimbursed for travel and
certain other out-of-pocket expenses.
The President receives an honorarium
\o compensate for the amount of
lime spent away from normal work
on Associalion business. The CEQ
and Non-Executive Direclor receive
sataries pursuant 1o their employment
conlracts. Delails of rustee expenses
and related party ransactions are
disclosed in notes 7 and 9 to the
Financial Stalements. All Trustees are
required o disclose relevant interests
and register them in accordance with
the Association’s policy. and highlight
them during discussions where
conflict of interests arise. Honoraria
are paid 1o the Editors of both JSAP
and Companion. Trustees indemnity
insurance is maintained for BSAVA,

On appointment. each trustee
undergoes an induction process
and training Lo brief them on their
tegal obligations under charity and
company law, the content of the
Alicles of Association, the Working
Commiliee and decision-making
processes. the Business Plan and
the recent financial performance
of the charity. Trustees complete a
declarations of inlerest form as part of
their induction and all other volunteers
are asked 1o complete a declaration
of interest form as best practice. All
trustees and volunteers are made
aware of their requirement 1o declare
any conflicts immegiately during
Working Commitiee meetings and
to ensure that any new conllicts are
reported for inclusion on the register.
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When positions become vacanl.
they are advertised Lo the membership
so that applications can be made
to the VDC. These applicalions are
then reviewed by the VOC which
will make a recommendation (o the
Board, which reports the appointed
candidales to Council. Board °
nominations have a further approval
stage of notification 1o Past Presidents
of the Associalion. All appointments
are then ratified at the Annual General
Meeting. Appointments to the
positions of Chair of ARC, VDC and
Council are via an application process
but are then subject Lo interview by a
panel as oullined in the Rule Book of
the Association. Council is tasked with
approving the nominations 1o the ARC
and VDC roles.

Overall. there are 325 volunteers
giving their time and expertise, and the
Association would like 10 thank them
for their work throughout the year.

Membership of BSAVA

The Association is 3 charitable
limiled company incorporaled under
the Companies Act 1985. On 31st
December 2020 there were 12.098
members (11,823 in December 2019)
of which 4442 (3,643 in December
2019) were student members. Each
paying member with full membership
rights has guaranleed to pay £1
in the event of Lhe winding up of
the Association. The Association is
governed by its Arlicles of Association.

Full members of BSAVA are individuals
working within the profession in the
area of small animal medicine and
surgery, who are regislered with the
Royal College of Velerinary Surgeons
(RCVS) or meet the requirements of
registration. They are essential (or the
work of BSAVA and we value their ime,
energy and supporl enormously.

Full details of membership are
available on our website, and
application forms can be downloaded.

Risk assessment

The truslees continually review
the risks to which Lhe Association
is exposed. particularly business.
operational and financial risks. and
introduce procedures and reporling
regimes to manage and reduce any
identified nsks. The trustees have
agreed clear lines of delegation and
authority to staff and have involved
stalf in recognition of risk in all their
activities. Procedures are reviewed
by the Audit and Risk Committee
regularly to ensure thal the needs
of the charity are met.

The trustees continue to
acknowledge the risk associaled
with our ability as an Association lo
retain and grow membership. The
Membership and Marketing team
continue 10 benchmark membership
numbers against thal of our previously
assessed markel size.

Financial strength is essential if BSAVA
is to develop in a secure and sustainable
manner, With the continuing instability
and volatility in the world financial
markets, the imporlance of ensuring a
solid financial ptatform from which to
operate becomes more relevant. and
during the past year we have adhered
10 our strategic plan in the face of
challenging limes. The trustees continue
to approve the ongoing income sirategy
plan, which acdresses these issues, and
in particular encourages diversification
of income streams.

Going Concern

The Trustees consider thal there
are no malerial uncerlainties about
the Associalion’s abilily o continue
as a going concern for the 12 month
period from the 10th March 2021.
While the Association has suffered
a reduction in fundraising activities
due to the current COVID-19
pandemic, the Trusiees are confident
that the amount of funds currently
invesled in 3 varied portfolio held
by Brewin Dolphin will cover any
financial commitmenis as they
arise. The portiolio total at the end
of the financial year covers 193%
of the annual {orecasted budgel of
£5.362.032 for 2021, should there
be a tolal loss of all income for the
coming 12 month period. All grant
making on-going commitments will
also be covered, by this portfolio.

In addition to this assessment, the
Trustees also confirm that there are
no material uncertainties affecting the
current financial statements, which
could affect fulire years. The key risks
of the Association are maintained on
the risk register. which is reviewed at
regular intervals and mitigations are in
place o mitigate those risks. (Please
refer (o the risk management and
reserves policy detailed within this
annual report).

Key management personnel
remuneration

The rustees consider the Woodiow
House Managernent Team as
comprising the key management
personnel of the charity in charge of
running and operating the charity on
3 day (o day basis.

The pay of the charity's management
team is reviewed annually. The
remuneration is also benchmarked
wilh other charities of a similar size
and aclivity as well as local companies
to ensure that the remuneralion set
is fair and not out of tine with that
generally paid for similar rofes.

Management and staffing

In the tradilional structure for the
management and siaffing at Woodrow
House. the offices of BSAVA, all
adminisirative supporl is overseen by
the Chief Execuiive Officer (CEQ).
The CEO and the management team
al Woodrow House, in association
wilh the trusiees, delivered the agreed
stralegy within the various policies and
protocols of the Association. The CEO
ensures the staff team can provide the
skills and expertise needed 10 run a
successful organisation, and thal the
values of BSAVA are observed.

THE WOODROW HOUSE
MANAGEMENT TEAM
CONSISTS OF:

« A Belcher
Head of Partnerships
(to 12/2020)

« E Bullimore
Head of Membership
& Marketing

= A Conroy
Head of Policy
& Communication

« § Fitzpatrick
Head of Partnerships
and Events
{from 01/2021)

* L Goodwin
Head of Education

» C Haile
Volunteers Manager

* E Hayes
IT Manager

* | Mellor
Head of Publishing

« A Stranack
Chief Executive Officer

- M Walmsley
Finance Manager

Public benefit statement

The trustees confirm that they have
complied with the duly in section 17
of the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard for the Charity Commission's
general guidance on public benefiz,
‘Charities and Public Benefit.

The objectives of the Association are:

+ The promotion for the public
henefit’ of high standards
of education and praclice
in the veterinary care and
treatment of small animats and
the dissemination of related
information 10 bolh velerinary
praciitioners ang the public.

The Association carries oul these

objectives by:

+ Providing continuing professional
development to the veterinary
profession through scientific
courses and leclures al regional
meetings and central locations,
which includes an annual scientific
Congress

« Publishing a variety of
educational material, including a
comprehensive and expanding
range of veterinary manuals,
the objective of which is to
maintain and improve the level of
knowledge and velerinary care of
companion animals

Funding research and teaching
related to the trealment and
wellbeing of companion animals
and veterinary public health,
Clinical research has the objectives
of finding cures for and treatment
of companion animal diseases and
retieving animal suffering

- Financing training programmes
for individuals underlaking
postgraduate research al Maslers
level. and clinical training, normally
al Masters level, where Lhe
student’s area of interest furthers
the objectives of the charity

« Providing funds for projects that
seek lo provide teaching in small
animal velerinary medicine in
developing and underdeveloped
countries.

By focusing on these areas we are
able o achieve our srategic priorities
of maintaining a slable teaching
programme and continuing 1o fund
research. All of our services and

grants are cpen to all; for example.
(raining courses and conlerences
where our charges are kept low thanks
10 spensorship from our corporale
supporlers.

€6 1n 2020, the trustees
donated £5,000 to the Australian
Veterinary Association, to assist in
their recovery from the bush fires
that devastated the country. 99

In 2020, the krustees donaled £5.000
(o the Australian Veterinary Associalion,
(o assist in their recovery from the bush
fires that devastated the country and
the profession in general at the start of
2020. The (ruslees also donated £1.600
Lo Vellife which helps those velerinary
surgeons most in need.

Fundraising policy

The Association’s Fundraising
Policy is reviewed and approved
by the trustees annually. PetSavers
is the brand name for the majority
of the fundraising activities for the
Associalion. Supporiers of PetSavers
are 3 key element in these fundraising
aclivilies and we are commilled (o
employing a transparent and ethical
approach 1o all of our fundraising
activities. As such we are committed
1o ensuring that our fundraising
practices go above and beyond all
regulations thal we rigorously monitor
and adhere (0.

To help guaraniee the availability of
continuing funds to fund the work of
PetSavers, we aim Lo maintain a broad
base of funding sources. The purpose
of the policy is to ensure clarity and
openness to all our stakeholders.
PetSavers does not pressure
supporlers lo make gills and respecis
decisions (0 slop giving.

The regulatory landscape for
fundraising is evolving and we will
continue o monilor and adapt with
these changes. This included the
introduction of the General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) in May
2018 and our registration with the
Fundraising Regulator.

When we work with suppliers and
agencies, we ensure thal Lhey are
fully registered with the appropriate
regutalory bodies and we review all
their policies as part of our robusl
procurement due-diligence process.

We monitor and record any
complaints resulling from our

fundraising practices and an annual
reporl is provided to our Audit and Risk
Commiltee. As at 31st December 2020
no complaints have been received.

Grant awarding policy

The Association carries out this
programme through partnerships
with individual academics, university

. veterinary schools and other

instilutions.

The Association established its
grant awarding policy Lo achieve its
objectives for the public beneft Lo
advance understanding of the cause
and/or management of a clinical
disorder and to improve the lives and
wellbeing of companion animals. The
grant awarding policy is reviewed
annually to ensure thal it refiects
the charity's objectives and thereby
advances public benefit

The beneficiaries of our grant making
programme are ullimately companion
animals and their owners. Our research
and educational programmes fund
students. researchers, research
inslitutions and velerinary care bodies.
which use the funds in their work
to improve the lives of companion
animals by making advances in the
aetiology. diagnosis and management
of disease. Any benefit received by
the researchers, research inslitutions
or velerinary care bodies is purely
incidental 1o the objectives of our work.

The oenelits of the Association’s
work are the education of future
researchers and velerinary
professionats, the dissemination
of research findings and current
knowledge, the development of
new lechniques and therapies, and
the funding of ongoing research.

- The goal is to improve standards in

animal welfare to the benefil of every
companion animal and pet owner
and all those concerned with the
treatment of companion animals.
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Funding sources

The trustees conlinued to work
to diversify the income streams
throughout the year as par of their
work towards risk mitigation. As
reported in previous years, a high
proportion of our income conlinues
Lo come from Congress, Membership
fees, Continuing Education and
Publications, but it is essential for
future growth to continue 1o look
for other income sources (o develop
within the Association.

The trustees can confirm that
funds are avaitable to fulfil all known
obligations of the Association.

Safeguarding Policy

The Association Volunteer and Staff
Handbooks outline the expected
behaviours for all staff and volunteers
and for volunteers. refer 1o the Nolan
Principles of Public Life (Selflessness.
Integrily, Objectivity. Accountability,
Openness. Honesly and Leadership).
All stafl and volunteers have a
responsibility Lo recognise and
respond to identified issues whilst
engaged on BSAVA business, and
must immediately reporl any concerns
about any colleague’s wellare 1o the
CEO. President or another Trustee.

The Association is commilted to
providing support and information
10 Trustees, staff and volunteers in
relalion (0 safeguarding and the
Truslees undertake o review the
Safeguarding Policy annually and
whenever legistation changes.

Statement of trustees’
responsibilities

The trusiees (who are also directors
of British Small Animal Veterinary
Association for the purposes of
company law) are responsible for
preparing the lrustees’ annual report
and the tinancial staiernents in

accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepled
Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trustees
to prepare linancial siaiernents for
each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of the
incoming resources and applicalion
of resources. including the income
and expenditure, of the charitable
company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the trustees
are required 1o

+ Select suilable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently

+ Observe the methods and
principles in the Charities SORP

+ Make judgements and estimales
thal are reasonable and prudent

« State whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards and
slatements of recommended
oraclice have been followed.
subject o any maleriat departures
disclosed and explained in the
linangial staterments.

« Prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
charity will continue in operation

The trustees are responsible for
keeping adequate accounling
records that disclose wilh reasonable
accuracy al any time the financial
position of the charilable company
and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for saleguarding the assels
of the charilable company and hence
for taking reasonable sleps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and
olher irregularities.

€6 Overall, there are 325
volunteers giving their time and
expertise, and the Association
would like to thank them for their
work throughout the year. 99

In so far as the truslees are aware:

* There is no relevant audit
information of which the charitable
company’s audilor is unaware

- The trustees have taken all steps
that they ought to have laken lo
make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to
establish that the audilor is aware
of that information

The trustees are responsible for
the maintenance and inlegrity of the
corporate ang financial information
included on the charitable company's
website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation
and disserination of financial
stalements may differ from legisiation
in other jurisdictions.

Members of the charity guarantee (o
contribule an amount not exceeding
£1to the assets of the charily in the
event of winding up. The total number
of such guarantees at 31st Decermber
2020 was 6.987 (2019 7.068). The
trustees are members of the charity
but this entitles them only to voling
rights, The trusiees have no deneficial
interest in the charity.

This report has been prepared in
accordance wilh the special provisions
relaling to small companiies within Part
15 of the Companies Act 2006.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES

s

lan Ramsey BVSc PhD DSAM
DipECVIIM-CA FHEA FRCVS

President, 2020 - 2021
10th March 2021

Trustees and Advisers

I K Ramsey President 241h May 2020
TRUSTEES S Paterson Senior Vice President 241h May 2020
The trustees at 31st December S Middleton Vice President 241h May 2020
2020 (with the date of their A Speakman Junior Vice President 241h May 2020
appointment or resignation D Godfrey HHonorary Treasurer 241h May 2020
where applicable) were as

follows: C Gorman Honorary Secretary 241h May 2020
S Spill Non-Execulive Director 24th May 2020
A Stranack Chief Executive Offices 24th May 2020
PIL Senior Vice President 24th May 2020

RESIGNED TRUSTEES
gi Office Woodrow House. 1 Telford Way.
COMPANY Waterwells Business Park. Quedgeley.
INFORMATION Gloucester, GL2 2AB
Company Secretary C Gorman
Registered charity number 1024811
Company registration number 02837793
Country of registration England
Country of incorporation United Kingdom
VAT registration number 189 3530 32
Auditor Sayer Vincent LLP.
ADVISERS Invicta House. 108 - 114 Golden Lane.
London, EC1Y OTL
Bankers Barclays Bank PLC.
128 High Street. Chelienham.
Gloucestershire. GLSO0 1EL
Solicitors Harrison Clarke Rickerbys Limited,

Investment Advisers

Ellenborough House, Wellingion Street.
Chellenham,
Gloucestershire, GL50 1YD

Cleveland Scolt York LLP.

0 Fetter Lane,

London, EC4A 1BR

Brewin Dolphin Limited.

4th Floor. The Paragon. Counterslip.
Bristol, BS1 6BX
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Independent
Auditor's Report

materally inconsistent wath the financial
statements or our knowledge oblained
in the course of the audit, or otherwise
appears lo be malerially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misslatements, we
are required 10 determine whether this
gives rise 1o a malerial misstatement in

g I,

To the members of British Small Animal

Veterinary Association

OPINION

We have audited the nancial
stalements of British Small Animal
Velerinary Associalion (the ‘charilable
company) for the year ended 31
December 2020 which comprise
the statement of financial activities.
balance sheet, statement of cash
flows and notes 1o the financial
statements, including sigaificant
accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards. including FRS
102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounling Practice).

In our opinion, the financial

statements:

+ Give a true and fair view of the
state of the charitable company’s
affairs as al 31 Decernber 2020
and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including
its income and expenditure for the
year then ended

« Have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting
Praclice

+ Have been prepared in accordance
with Lhe requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard
and we have fulfilled our other ethical
ies in with these

the financial 1
Dbased on the work we have performed.
we conclude thal there is a materiat
misstatement of this other information,
we are required 10 report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this
regard.

ponsibilit
requirements, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained s sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

CONCLUSIONS
RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

In auditing the financial staternents,
we have concluded that the rustees
use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the
financial staternents 1s appropriate.

Based on the work we have
performed. we have not idenufied
any material uncertainties relaling to
events or conditions thal. individually
or colleclively. may cast significant
doubt on Brilish Small Animal
Veterinary Association’s ability 1o
continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibililies and the
responsibiilies of the trusiees with
respect 1o going concern are described
in the retevant sections of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in
accordance with Internationat
Standards on Audiling (UK) (I5As (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those slandards are further
described in the Auditor's responsit
for the audit of the financial
stalements seclion of our report. We
are independent of the charitable
company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are retevant o our
audt of the financial stalements in the

ties

The other i comprises the
information included in the trustees
annual report other than the financial
statements and our audilor's reporl
thereon. The trustees are responsible
for the other information contained
‘within the annual report. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and. except
10 the extent otherwise explicilly stated
in our report, we do nol express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other
information and. in doing so. consider
whether the other information is

OPINIONS ON OTHER
MATTERS PRESCRIBED
BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit:
- The information given in the
uustees annual report for the
financia! year for which ine
{inancial staternents are prepared
is consistent with the financial
statements, and
+ The trustees’ annual report,
including the siralegic report has
been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements,

MATTERS ON WHICH
WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the charitable
company and its environment oblained
in the course of the audil. we have not
identified raterial misslaternents in
the trustees’ annual reporl. We have
nothing Lo report in respect of the
following matters in relalion to which
the Companies Act 2006 requires us
10 report to you if, in our opinion

+ Adequale accounting records have

nol been kepl, or relurns adequale
for our audil have nol been received
from branches nol visited by us: or

« The financial statements are not

in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

+ Cerlain disclosures of trusiees’

remuneration specified by law are
not made. or

* We have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audil; or
The directors were not entitled (o
prepare the financial statements

in accordance with the small
companies regime and lake
advantage of the small companies’
exemptions in preparing the
tustees' annual report and from
the requirement to prepare a
stralegic report.

design procedures in line with our
responsibilities. outlined above. to
detect material misstatements in
respecl of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent o which our procedures
are capable of detecting irregularities,
including raud are set oul below.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF
TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the
stalement of rustees’ responsibilities set
outin the lrustees annual report. the
trustees {who are also the directors of
the charitable company for the purposes
of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the firancial statements
and for being sausfied that they gve a
true and {air view, and for such internal
conlrol as the trustees determine is
necessary 1o enable the preparation of
fnancial statements that are free from
malerial misstatement, whether due lo
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial siatements,
the lrustees are responsible for
assessing the charitable company's
ability o conlinue as a going concern,
disclosing. as applicable. matters
related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting
untess the trustees either intend lo
liquidate the charilable company or lo
cease operations, or have no realistic
altemative but to do so.

AUDITOR’'S
RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as 3 whole
are free from material misstatement.
whether due lo (raud or error, and lo
issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is nol a
guarantee thal an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will atways
detect a malerial misstalement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be
expecled to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financia! statements.

Inegularities. including fraud,
are instances of non-compliance
wilh laws and regulations. We

CAPABILITY OF THE
AUDIT IN DETECTING
IRREGULARITIES

In identifying and assessing risks
of material misstatement in respect
of irregularities. including fraud and
non-compliance wilh laws and
regulations, our procedures included
the following

+ We enquired of management which

included oblaining and reviewing

* In addressing the risk of fraud
through management override
of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries
and other agjustments, assessed
whether the judgements made in
making accounting estimates are
indicalive of a polential bias and
tesied significant transactions that
are unusual or those oulside the
normal course of business.

Because of the inherent limilations of
an audit, there is a risk that we will not
delect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material missialement
n the financial siaternents or
non-compliance wilh regulation.

This risk increases the more that
compliance with a law or regulation
is removed from the events and
transaclions refiected in the financial

pporting )
concerming the charity's policies
and procedures refating to.

- Identifying. evaluating. and
complying with laws and regulations
and whether they were aware of any
instances of non-compliance:

s, as we will be less likely to
become aware of instances of non-
compliance. The risk is also grealer
regarding irregularities occurring due
1o fraud rather than error, as fraud
involves intentional concealment,
forgery. coflusion, omission or

« Delecling and responding (o the
risks of {raud and whether they
have knowledge of any actual,
suspected. or alleged fraud:

+ The internal controts established
Lo mitigate risks related 1o fraud
or non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

+ We inspected the minutes of
meetings of those charged with
governance.

+ We oblained an understanding of
the legal and regulatory ramework
that the charily operales in. [ocusing
on those laws and regulations
thal had a sniaterial effect on
the financial stalements or that
had a fundamental efect on the
operations of the charity from our
professional and seclor experience.

- We communicated applicable laws
and regulations throughout the
audit team and remained alert to
any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audil.

- We reviewed any reports made 10
regulators.

= We reviewed the hnancial
statement disclosures and tested
these o supporting documentation
10 assess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

« We performed analytical
procedures to identily any unusual
or unexpected relationships that
may indicate risks of materiat
misstatement due 1o fraud.

A further description of our
responsibilities is available on
the Financial Reporting Council's
website al: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our audilor's
report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the
charitable company’s members as a
body. in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters
we are required 0 state lo them in
an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullesl extent permitted
by law. we do not accepl or assume
responsibitity 1o anyone other than the
charitable company and the charitable
company's members as a body. for our
audit work, for this report. or for the
opinions we have formed.

Fteur Holden

(Senior statutory auditor)

29th March 2021

for and on behall of Sayer Vincent LLP.
Statutory Auditor

Invicta | louse. 108-114 Golden Lane,
LONDON. EC1Y OTL
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Financial

Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For the year ended 31st
December 2020

The BSAVA is a charilable company.
limited by guaraniee and is
incorporaled in England and Wales.
The registeres office is Woodiow
House. 1 Telford Way.

income

Income is recognised when the
charity has entillement 1o the funds.
any performance conditions altached
10 the income have been met, itis
probable thal the income will be
received and that the amount can be
measured reliably.

s are

Business Park, Ouedgeley. Gloucester
GL2 2AB.

Basis of prep

recognised as a proportion of the
annual fee al each monhly intervat
during the annual membership.

The financial statements have

been prepared in accordance

with Accounting and Reporting

by Charities: Stalement of
Recommended Practice applicable

10 charities preparing their accounts
in accordance wilh Lhe Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) -
(Charities SORP £RS 102). the Financial
Reporling Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102)
and the Companies Act 2006.

Assels and liabilities are initially
recognised at historical cost or
transaction value unless otherwise
stated in the relevant accounting
policy or note.

Public benefit entity

The charitable company meets the
definition of a public benefit entity
under FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees consider that there

are no malerial uncertainties about
the charitable company’s ability to
conlinue as a going concern.

The trustees do not consider that
there are any sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting dale,
other than the potential exception of
the Investment Portfolio, that have a
significant risk of causing a material
adjustment Lo the carrying amounts
of assets and liabililies within the next
reporling period.

! ip is paid for on a rolling
basis and begins al the point of
exchange of economic benefils, or
the slart of the month preceding
taking a payment via a monthly or
annual Direct Debil. Direct Debit
payments are for fixed amounts for a
maximum of 12 moniths.

Conltinuing Education and Congress
income i recognised upon intended
altendance at the course. exam or
event and thal the course, exam or
event have happened.

Publications sales are recognised at
the point of sale and the transfer of
goods or services required have laken
place.

For legacies. entitlement is laken

as the earlier of the date on which
either: the charity is aware that
probale has been granted, the eslale
has been finalised and notification
has been made by the executor(s)

(o the charily that a distribution will
be made. or when a distribution is

Donations of gifts, services
and facilities

Donated gits. professional services
and facilities are recognised as income
when the charily has control over
the item or received Lhe service,

any conditions associaled with the
donalion have been met, the receipt
of economic benefit from the use
by the charity of the item is probable
and that economic henefit can be
measured reliably. In accordance
with the Charilies SORP (FRS 102).
volunteer (ime is not recognised
and so the reader is referred Lo the
trustees’ annual report for more
information aboul their contribution.

On receipt. donated gills. professional
services and facilities are recognised
on the basis of he value of the gift lo
he charity. which is the amount the
charily would have been willing to

pay o oblain services or facililies of
equivalent economic benefit on the
open markel; a corresponding amount
is then recognised in expenditure in
the period of receipl.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposil is
included when receivable and the
amount can be measured refiably
by the charity: this is normally upon
notification of the interest paid or
payable by the bank.

Fund accounting

Restricted funds are (o be used for
specific purposes as laid down by the
donor. Expenditure which meels these
criteria is charged to the fund
Unrestricted funds are donalions and
other incoming resources received or
generaled for the charitabte purposes.

Designated funds are unrestricled
funds earmarked by the Lrustees for
particular purposes.

Expenditure and irrecoverabie
VAT

received from the eslate. Receipt

of a legacy. in whole or in part. is
only considered probable when the
amount can be measured reliably
and the charity has been notified

of Lhe executor’s intention to make
a distribution. Where legacies have
been nolified to the charity or the
charity is aware of the granting of
probale. and the crileria for income
recognilion have not been met. then
the legacy is a reated as a conlingent
asset and disclosed if material.

is ised once there
is a legal or constructive obligation

o make a payment 10 a third party.

itis probable thal settlement will

be required and the amount of the.

obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classifed under the

following activity headings:

+ Cost of raising funds relaling to the
costs incurred by the charitable
company in inducing third parties (0
make voluntary contributions 10 it.
as well as the cost of any activities
wilh a fundraising purpose

+ Expenditure on charitable activities
including the cost of delivering
membership services. Congress
and other educational activities
undertaken Lo {urther the purposes
of the charily and their associated
support costs

Other expenditure represents those
itemns not falling under any other
heading.

Irrecoverable VAT is charged as a
cost against the activity for which the
expenditure was incurred.

Allocation of support and
governance costs

Overheads and other costs not
directly atiributable to a particular
aclivily category are apportioned over
the relevant calegories on the basis of
staff bme and the space occupied.

Operating leases
Rental charges are charged on a siraight
line basis over lhe term of the lease.

Tangible fixed assets

ltems of equipment are capitalised
where the purchase price exceeds
£500 or £300 for IT Equipment.
Deprecialion costs are allocaled to
activilies on Lhe basis of lhe use of
the related assets in those activilies.
Assels are reviewed for impairment if
circumstances indicate their carrying
value may exceed their nel realisable
value and value in use.

The refurbished and exlended
Woodrow House has been valued

in the assel register via the Value in
Use method. which is the cost of

the main contractor plus the project
management fees. This represents the
value of the building to the association
for our provision of member

services and high quality continuing
professional development. See note 11
for further deails.

Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write down the cost of
each assel o ils estimated residual
value over its expected useful lite. The
deprecialion rates in use are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Freehold buildings 4% of cost
Plant equipment 20% of cost
Fixtires and fitlings 25% of cost
Olfice eauipment

(inc. IT equipment) 33% ol cost

Listed investments

Investments are a form of basic
financial instrurnent and are initially
recognised al their lransaction value
and subsequently measured al their
fair value as at the balance sheet
date using the closing quoted market
price. Any change in air value will

be recognised in the statement of
financial activities. Investment gains
and losses, whether realised or
unrealised, are combined and shown
in the heading "Nel gains/ (iosses)

on investments” in the stalement of
financial activities. The charity does
not acquire put options, derivalives or
other complex financial instruments.

Stocks

Stocks are stated al the lower of cost
and nel realisable value. In general,
cost is deterrmined on a first in first
oul basis and includes transport and
handling costs. Net realisable value is
the price at which stocks can be sold
in the normal course of business after
allowing for the costs of realisation,
Provision is made where necessary
for slow moving stocks.

Debtors

Trade and other deblors are
recognised al the settlement amount
due. Prepayments are valued al the
amount prepaid.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and cash in hand
includes cash and short-term highly
liquid investments with a shart
maturily of three months o less from
the date of acquisition or opening of
1he deposil or similar account.

Creditors and provisions
Creditors and provisions are
recognised where the charity has a
present obligation resulling from a
past event thal will probably result
in the transfer of funds to a third
party and the amount due (0 sellle
the obligation can be measured or
estimaled reliably. Creditors and
provisions are normally recognised
al their settlement amount.

Financial instruments

The charity only has financial assets
and financial liabilities of a king thai
qualify as basic financial instruments.
Basic financial instruments are initiatly
recognised at ransaction value and
subsequently measured at their
setllement value.

Pension costs

Conlributions payable on behalf

of employees (o money purchase
pension schemes are charged 10 the
slaternent of financial actwvilies as they
become payable.

PetSavers grants payable
Grants payable are payments lo
third parties in the furtherance of
charitable objectives. Grants, including
multi-year grants, are accounted for
in full following the approval of the
grant by the PeiSavers’ Management
Cornmiltee ang notification of

the award to the recipient. Certain
mulli-year grants are subject (0 an
annual report requirement, which
gives PetSavers the discrelion lo
refuse further funding. Whilst this
discrelion is relained in practice the
implementation of this is low.
Awards are written off 1o the extent
thal the Association is notified that
projects or research are not being
conlinued. On this basis. the trusiees
consider il appropriate o account
for multi-year grants in full with the
corresponding amounts payable
included within creditors.
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Statement of Financial activities Balance Sheet

For the year ended 31st December 2020 As at 31st December 2020 . Company No. 02837793
-~ - . -
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019 2020 2019
UNRESTRICTED  RESTRICTED TOTAL  UNRESTRICTED  RESTRICTED ToTAL NoTE 3 €
NoTE ! £ e € £ € € .
Fixed assets
INCOME FROM: langible assets 1 226092 . 2516158
Donations & legacies 1 - 30548 30,548 853 172.369 175202 Invesiments. 12 10429575 10.353.757
Charitable activities I 12694496 12869910 |
Membership subs b senvices 2 L201179 - 1291179 1310501 . 1510591 <
urrent assets
Proacs & services 2 2126856 4139 2132995 1290592 5602 4,286,194 Socks ) 1 199561 260556
Investments L 186071 34439 222510 238712 11258 282950 Debtors 15 429630 ns301
- Cash at bank f In hana M 992958 2193991
| Totat income 3608106 69.126 36772231 5840728 222209 es02957 |
’ ’ | 1,622,149 3470838 |
EXPENDITURE ON: Creditors: Amount falling due within one year 16 (2401057 ¢ (2903961)
Raising funds Net current (liabilities)/ assets (778,908) 267.877
Raising funds s 33397 28048 6Laa5 ss.1a5 30369 64114 [ 1
Net assets. 11,915,586 13,137,789
Charitable activities
Membership subs & services 4 1190929 . 1190929 1268761 - 1.268./61 The funds of the charity 2
Producis b services a 3308671 240236 3518907 4790145 126005 4916150 Restricted income funds 1267053 147544
Unrestricted income funds - Designated 2386505 4 197,019
| Total expenditure 4,532,997 268,284 4,801,281 6,092,651 156,374 6,249,025 l - General lunds 8262026 0605426
Net (expenditure) before net s
losses) / gains on investments (924,891 (199,158) (1124,050) (25192%) 65855 1186.088) ‘ Total charity funds 11915586 13157789 |
Net flosses) / gains on invesiments ©3022) 130 8153 1100988 28015 1319001
Net mavement in funds in the year (1.017.914) (200.289)  (1.222,203) 849,065 283,848 1132913 Approved by the lrustees on 10th March 2021 and signed on their behalf by
T'unds at the beginning of the year 11666,445 1471344 13.137.789 10.817.380 1187496 12.001.876
 Funds at the end of the year 10,648,531 1267055 11915586 11,666.445 tarises 13137789 |

All of the above resulls are derived Irom continuing activilies. There were no other recognised gains or losses other than those stated
above. Movement in funds are sl n in note 21 to ihe financial statemenis.
ve. Mov in funds are showni ! David Godrey BVelMed CertSAD CerntSAM DipABVP CBiol FSB FRCVS

Honorary Treasurer
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Statement of Cash Flows

Fo;' the year ended 31st December 2020

2020 2020 2019 2019
NOTE £ £ £ 3
Cash flows fram operating activities 19 - 252173 - 1545,825)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends and interest from investments 222510 - 282950
Purchase o fixed assets 12.630) 150778
Proceeds from safe of investments 3108823 1552297
Purchase of investments {3.402.765) - (1691844
I Net cash used In investing activities - (84,066) - 112,625 l
- 11.336.239) - 1435200}
l Change in cash & cash equivalents In the year - 1336239 - 1433,200) !
. PSRN
The funds of the charity
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year - 2418707 - 2880.582
Change in cash b cash equivalents due Lo exchange fale movements 15311 . (@847%)
I Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 - 1,097,782 - 2,418,707

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Income from Donations and Legacies

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
TOTAL RESTRICTED TOTAL
€ 3 € € €
Donations 5320 5320 833 21669 22502
Legacies - 25228 25208 150,700 150700
l - 30,548 30,548 833 172,369 m.zan
2. Income from Charitable Activities
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
ToTAL ToTAL
£ € 3 I3 £ €
Members' subscriptions 1179221 - 1179221 1228128 1228128
Jsap 11958 - 11,958 82465 - 82463
Membership subscriptions & services 1291179 1291179 1310591 1310501
Putlications 918066 - 918066 960096 - 960,096
Continuing education 1203032 - 1205032 1418301 - 1418,501
Congress 7758 - 7758 1912,195 - 1912195
Petsavers - 4139 4139 - 5602 5602
Products b services 2,128,856 4139 2432,995 4,290,592 5.602 4,296,194
Totat Income from charitable activities 3,420,035 4139 3420174 5,601,183 5,602 5,606,785 I
3. Investment Income
2020 2019
I3 €
Income from bsted Axed asset investments - unrestrcied 179488 220161
Income from listed fixed asset invesiments - restricted 34439 44,238
Interest on cash deposits 8563 14518
L 222,510 zazsso_}

24 BsAvA [ Annuat Report and Financial Statements

BSAVA | Annual Report and Financial Statements 25



Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Analysis of Expenditure

4. Analysis of Expenditure

MEMBERSHIP MEMBERSHIP

RAISING  SUBSCRIPTIONS ~ PRODUCTS GOVERNANCE  SUPPORT 2020 RAISING  SUBSCRIPTIONS  PRODUCTS GOVERNANCE  SUPPORT 2019

FUNDS & SERVICES B SERVICES €OSTS COSTS TOTAL FUNDS b SERVICES & SERVICES €OSTS TOTAL

€ [3 [3 3 3 3 € [3 [3 3 3 3

Statf costs (ncte N - 416672 807028 19.852 221570 1495102 Staff costs tnote 7 - 86612 868485 236.274 . 1491371
Cost of sales. - 181864 226879 - - 408,743 Cosl of sales - 162.945 236.132 - - 399,077 °

Travel & accommodation - 6038 120540 19194 461 155233 ravel & accommodation - 2162 753790 102,188 6698 866,830
Administration 212 169821 308495 1555 157217 658,560 Administation 25661 191996 755,601 9313 201451 11,182,025 ,
Repairs - 108 - 15871 15979 Repairs - - 2 . 8484 8,509 |
Protessional lees - 98,250 607141 82199 95126 978316 Professional fees - 147823 888798 104,552 51995 1193168 4

Ren, rates b insurance 16,598 471990 - 18179 506562 Rent, rates & insurance - 17036 566645 4375 17409 1 604,463
Depreciation 1923 95871 567 165502 263,866 Depreciaiion - 25357 95899 910 162829 284,995
Awaids & grants 18,542 205087 - - 223429 . Awards & granis - 42577 81,146 | 1235231
Investment management fees 40033 - - - - 40,033 Investment management fees. 40450 . - 40450
Finance charges 889 2557 - 12 55458 Finance charges - 43810 10703 55 38t 54606

61415 990192 2946699 128947 675908 4,801.201 64114 1042.118 4.236.224 221391 6,249,025
Support costs - 168.500 505498 < (673998 - Support costs - 171.295 515885 - 16851781 -t

Governance costs s2257 96710 (128947 . - Covermance costs - 55318 166043 (221391 | -
boxal expenditure 2020 61445 1190929 3,548,507 - - 4.501.2!11] [ Total expenditure 2019 54114 1,268,761 4916150 - - 6,249,025 ]
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S. Net Income / (Expenditure} for the Year

2020 2019
This is stated after charging/crediting £ £
Depreciation 263,866 284,995
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit 19790 19400
Other services 525
Operating lease rentals
Property 462090 425472
(Gains) / Losses on foreign exchange as31) | 28473

Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Analysis of Grants / Awards

2020 GRANTS TO
INSTITUTIONS  INDIVIDUALS
[ E
Research projects
PetSavers 200512 -
BSAVA awards - 11742
tndustry donations 6,600 -
l 21112 1,782 I
l_Tatal grants / awards - 222,854 |
For comparalive purposes. the Analysis of Grants/Awards for the Year Ended 31st December 2019
2019 GRANTSTO GRANTS TO
INSTITUTIONS  INDIVIDUALS
13 £
Research projects
PetSavers 81116
Education
Clinical Club leclures 7114
Congress attendance 11800
BSAVA awards - 12,112
Industry donations 11,351 -
99,611 23912
Total grants/ awards - 123523
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Recipients of institutional grants and awards for the Year Ended 31st December 2020

TOTAL TOTAL
3 €
Research - PetSavers
University of Liverpoot 115897
University of Cambridge 42089 =
University of Oxtord 8000 -
University of Notlingham 7830 -
University of Bristol 2500 -
Universlly of Giasgow 1700 .
Royal Veterinary College 1600 -
Claims wiiticn offin the year 15,104} -
. 200512
Industry donations.
Australian Veterinary Association 5000 -
Veiliie 1600 -
- 6600
frowt - 1,112 ]

Notes to the Financial Statements

Recipients of institutional grants and awards for the Year Ended 31st December 2019

TOTAL TOTAL
13 £
Research - PetSavers
University of Cambridge 43528
Royal Veterinary College 14616 -
University of Bristol 11,906 -
Univessity of Edinbuigh 897 -
Cheshire Cardiology 8000 -
University of Liverpool 7910 =
Claims written off in the yoor (13818) -
- 81146
Education - Clinical Club Lectures / Conferences
University of Brisiol 1500
University of Clasgow 1500
University of Liverpool 15¢0 -
1500 .
University of Edinburgh 918
University of Nottingham 200 '
714
Industry Donations
WSAVA 10,000
Vet poicy Research Foundation 1000
Animal Welfare and Ethics 300 .t
Various Small Donations. $1
11354 n
m " ooent ]
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7. Analysis of Staff Costs, Trustee Remuneration and Expenses, and the Cost of Key Management Personnel

2020 2019

£ E

Salaries anc wages 1249793 1.240.241
Redundancy and termination costs 8642 16986
Social security costs 116.224 116.576
Employer's lion to defined i h 97698 94404
Qthet forms of employee beneits 22745 23.164

[ 149002 Lesuan )

All redundancy and termination costs have been fully sellled in the year the costs were incurred. There was no outstanding amounts
at the year end.

The following number of employees recewed employee benefis (excluding employer's naional nsurance and excluding employer
pension costs) during the year between:

2020 2019
£60,000 - £69.999 1 i
£70,000 - £79.999 1 1

The total employee enefiis including employer's pension contributions and employer's National Insurance of the key managemen
personnel were £556.824 (2019: £535.044).

2020 2019
€ 3
Trustees’ semuneration 177767 135665
Tustees expenses 11380 s8.210
[ 189,747 191,075 |

Atotal of nine lruslees served during the year to 315t December 2020. All trustees, with the exceplion of one, claimed expenses in the
year for Association meeling atiendance. running continuing pr courses and ing the Association at
third parly meetings.

The lruslees’ remuneration includes the payments or accrued payments made on behalf of the President’s Honorarium, for which
permission has been granted by the Charity Commission. Payments of £63,423 were paid to the Universily of Glasgow for the
services provided by Professor Ramsey. of which £42.467 were accrued at the year end. n.2019. payments of £46.950 were paid
(o Veterinary Dermalologicals Ltd for services provided by Mrs Susan Palerson (of which £20.956 was accrued at the year end). and
payments of £15,270 were paid Lo Elands Veterinary Clinic for (he services provided by Mr Philip Lhermelte.

The trustees’ remineration also includes the total employment benefits paid to Non-Executive Director. Mr Steve Spill of £19.832
(2019: Enil). Although Miss Amanda Stranack did not receive any remuneration for her role as a lrusiee. the trustees’ remuneration
includes the total emoloyee benefits of £94,512{2019: £71.445) paid to her as part of her employment contract. This includes
employer pension contribulions of £6.334 (2019: £4.674).

Notes to the Financial Statements

8. Staff Numbers
The average number of employees (head count based on numoer of staff employed) during the year was as follows:

. 2020 2019

Products and services 23 25
Membership subscriplions & services n 10
Support . 7 7
Governance 1

{ a2 0]

9. Related Party Transactions

Asis the nature of the Association, the Association transacts wilh ils (rustees and members in relation 1o such items as publication sates,
provision of training courses and membership fees. These are provided al commerciat rates although members. who include the trustees,
receive a discount on products and services by virtue of their membership. Consequently. as products and services provided to the trustees
are not on dilferent commecial lerms to those received by other mernbers, ihe trustees 6o not consider that any disclosures in the
financial stalements are required in respect of these transaciions.

10. Taxation

The charilable company is exempl from corporation tax as all its income is charitable and is applied for charitabte purposes.

11. Tangible Fixed Assets

FIXTURES, !
FREEHOLD FITTINGS OFFICE 4 )
PROPERTY EPLANT  EQUIPMENT ToTAL
3 € 3 £
Cost N
Asat Ist January 2020 2316730 345654 659053 3351437
Additions - - 1263 12634
Disposals, - - 112661 (11,266}
At 3151 December 2020 2.56.730 345654 660421 3352805
Depreciation
Asat 1st January 2020 124,528 194408 513551 835.284
Charge for year 85932 7591 102023 263866
Visposals - - 11,266} (1L.266)
M 315t December 2020 213,260 270,516 604,308 1087884
Net book vatue .
l As at 315t December 2020 2433.470 75338 56,113 2,264,921
&s at 15t January 2020 2.219.402 151,249 145,502 2516153

Land wilh a value of £200.000 (2019:£200.000) is included within Freehold Property and not depreciated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

12. Listed Investments

2020 2019
3 [3
Fair value at the siart of the year 10128961 8670415
Additions at Cost 3402765 1.691.844
Ulsposals proceeds (3.108.823) 11.552.207)
Net losses) and gains on investmert ©98152) 1319001
Cash held by Investment managers for investment purposes 104824 221,196
[ Falr value as at 31st December 10,429,575
The fair value of the investments is analysed as [ollows®
Listed on United Kingdom Stock Exchange 2784241 3919964
Listed on non-United Kingdom Stock Exchanges 4841719 21,760
United Kingdom Gilis & Fixed interest 2,044,505 1,985,730
Hedge funds b Other 403773 394350
Property Funds 25050 307,097
Cash held by Investment managers for investment purposes 104,824 224796
L 10429575 10353757 l
13. Financial asset measured at fair value through profit and loss
2020 2019
[3 €
nvesiments 10.324.751 10.128.961
L 10324751 10,123,9511
14. Stock
2020 2019
3 [3
Work In progress 2153 295
finished goods 230802 215231
Provision tor stow moving stock 133.394) 2.628)
| 199,561 zsa.snj

Notes to the Financial Statements

15. Debtors
2020 2019
€ 3
Trade debiors, 148909 . 141673
Other debors 25574 19581
Prepayments. 239467 536972
Accruedincome 15,860 15165
t 429,630 m.mJ
16. Creditors - Amounts Falling Due Within 1 Year
2020 2019
€ €
Irade creditors 19768 104,220
Tasation & social security 114954 170320
Grants payabte 189921 160.747
Other creditors 76122 | 216036
Accruais 213695 220237
Deferred income 1586,597 2052401
r 2,401,057 z_snmsx]

17. Deferred Income

Deferred income comprises of membership dues, commercial exhibition fees and continuing professional development registrations

2020 2019
£ 14
ualance at beginning of year 2032401 1959791
Amount released (o income in the yea (L823751) (176,005
Amount deferted in the year 1377947 1828615
| Balance at year end 1586,597 2,032,401 l
2020 2019
€ €
Mermbersnip services 232679 237121
Congress. 100,003 650,767
Posigracuale cerificaic 1122008 1016751
Continued professionat development 16751 25802
masiers 38000 20750
BSAVA Library Access 77116 61120
r 1.586,597 2,032,401 ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements Notes to the Financiat Statements

18. Pension Scheme 21. Movement in Funds
The Association provides an auto enrolment qualifying group pevsonal pension scheme for its employees. The assets are held The detail below is for Lhe Year Ended 31st December 2020. 3 L
separately from those of the company in funds. C payable by the Association during the ASATIST ASATSIST
year were E97698 (2019: £94.404), Al the end of 2020 there was o balance 1o be transferred 10 the pension provider (2019: i, JANUARY  INCOMEG EXPENDITURE DECEMBER |
2020 GAINS HLOSSES  TRANSFERS 2020
. " N . E [ £ E E
19. Reconciliation of Net Income / (Expenditure) to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
- Restricted fund:
2020 2019
€ € Pessavers 1471344 63,995 1268.28) - 1267055
Net incame for the reporting period (1222203 1132913 Unrestricted funds: i
as per the statement of financial activites) Designated funds - see note 21 1971019 - 118./02) 464188 1 2386505
Depreciation charges . 263866 © 284995 General tunct 9695423 3613236 (4582448) (168.188) 8262026 |
Losses / (Gains) on investments, 98153 (1.319.001) ,

Total Unrestricted funas 11666445 3613236 (4,631,150} - 10,648,531 .
1Gains} / Losses on currency revaluation 15.311) 28475 -
Dividends & interest Irom invesiments (222510 (2829501 I Totat funds 13.137.789 3677231 (4.899.434) - neu,an
Decrease in siocks 64975 11129
{increase) / Decrease in debtors 283761 1403,832)

Decrease in creditors (502.904) (552) . . . X .
- . Please be aware lhat the Movement in funds detailed below is for the year ending 31st December 2019 and is illustrated for
l Net cash (used In) operating activities (1.252.173) (545,825 ] comparalive purposes. PO
ASAT1ST } AsAT3IST
JANUARY INCOME®&  EXPENDITURE * DECEMBER
20. Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents "‘: °‘"‘: “°5“: “‘“““: “‘:
AS AT 1ST AS AT 515T
JANUARY casH OTHER DECEMBER Restricted fund: .
2“2 ‘“’W: C"‘““: "’: Peisavers 1187496 140222 56,3741 - 1471340

Unrestricted funds:

Cash at bank in hand 2193991 1.216.547) 550 992958 Designated funds - see note 21 1991629 . (2095261 188716 1971019 *
Cash held by investors lor invesiment purposes 22416 (119.892) - 104,827 General fund 8825751 5622715 (456432} 1188716) 9695423
[mm Cash & Cash equivalents 2418707 (1,336,239 15311 1,097,785 l fotat Unnestricted funds 10817380 5622715 (4775650} - 11666445 '

bm funds 12.004,876 6062957 (4,930,024) - 13,137,789 1

Purpose of the restricted fund:

The restricted fund is known as PeiSavers and largely comprises money received from legacies, covenants, donations and fundraising
activities. Il includes PetSavers’ investments (held with Brewin Dolphin in the PetSavers portiolio). PetSavers investments may nol be
used for general Association purposes.

The majority of the PetSavers Income (as details on page 25) is used 10 fund PeiSavers’ grants. For the year (o 315t December 2021.
the expected spend on awards will be in the region of £120.000. The first part of the PetSavers Citizen Science project was awardes
in the year. This tolalted £110.470 and was awarded 1o the University of Liverpool.
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22. Designated Funds

The detail below is for the Year Ended 31st December 2020.

ASAT 15T ASAT3IST
IANUARY  NEW DESIGNATION / OECEMBER
2020 (RECLASSIFICATION)  (UTILISED) 2020
3 £ 3 3
lixed asset reptacement 838,284 265866 (11.266) 1067884
Property maintenance 20000 2891 12.109
Marketing project 150,600 150000 ¢
Publications project a380 14387 - -
PDP project 501 (51,019 - -
Practical CPD project 200,000 12000001 -
Oniine CPD development 160.000 {100,000} - -
Mentorship 71100 - 621 70479
SAVSNET research projects. 50,000 50,000
Congress operational 15000 - 15000
Links Group 8727 - 8727
CGovemance project 46771 - 299 i
Terporary business development 29252 207 (29159) .
Data analysis & reporting 20000 (6851 19315
Properly expansion 250,000 - 1 250000
New activities und 100,000 - 100000
Sustainability Working Group - 25,000 25,000
Digitization project $50.000 350000
Online forum - 100,000 100,000 ¢
Vet GOP project - 160000 100000 ,
‘ 197L019 464,188 (48,702) ;,sas_,sos]

Notes to the Financial Statements

[0}

{ii)

iy

(iv)

v

vi)

{vii)

{viii)

(ix)

x)

(i)

Fixed asset replacement:

This reserve represents the gepreciation of fixed assets. as
detailed in note 1. Depreciation is a measure of wear and
tear and therefore this reserve makes allowance for the
Association (o replace worn oul assets. Funds have been
utilised from this reserve as assels have been disposed of.

Property maintenance:

The property. Woodrow House. requires continual
maintenance and upgrading in order Lo salisly the
requirements of the Association. and (o mainlain the
building.

Marketing project:

Further development and communications around
planned changes prior 1o and during the transfer (
Manchesler.

Publications project:
The project to digitafise the Association's publications (in
terms of production and delivery meihods) has now gone
live. Remaining balance to be used 1o enhance he Library
and delivery methods lo improve the ser experience.

PDP project:

As part of BSAVAT lifelong learning strategy this fund
bhas been designaled Lo provide support and resources
for new graduates in the professional development
phase of their career.

Practical CPD project:

This fund has been designaled (o explore innovative
alternalive modets for delivery of practical skils training.
The project i looking al and based on identifying new
lechnologies and aliernatives (0 the use of cadavers in
practicat CPD.

Ontine CPO development:

The money designated in this reserve is for the
development of online learning platforms (o facilitate
extended delivery of continuing education. This will
enhance the uplake of education throughoul the
profession nationally and internationally.

Mentorship:

Funding allocated for the implementation of a mentorship
scherme, inilially 1o provide support lo recently qualified
members within the profession. Year 1 pilol complete and
initial planning phase underway for year 2 of the pilol.

SAVSNET research projects:

Funging {0 suppoOrt research projects benefiing from
SAVSNET project data. providing insights in to key areas
for the benefit of our members.

Congress operational plan:

The fund has been allocated to assist in the operational
contingency planning for the Association's annual
Congress.

Links Group:

Continued funding 10 put on CPD events working
with the Links Group in supporting training to help
vels undersiand the complexity of abuse around the
concept of non-accidental injury and the “violent
household" in addition to how L0 approach situations
when animal abuse is suspected.

(xii)

{xiii)

(xiv)

xv)

{xvi)

{xvii)

(xviil)

{xix)

xx}

Governance project:

‘The Association has been working on reforming its
governance structure since 2017. This culminaled in the
changes being approved al the AGM in April 2019. The
remaining fund has been allocated (o bring in additional
support and advice during the reforming discussions and
transition period, while the Associalion continually works
on the reforms needed Lo improve processes.

Temporary business development:

In an ever more compelitive market the fund has
been sel up Lo bring in expert advice where needed
for specific tasks to support the Assocation in its.
current and future aclivilies.

Data analysis and reporting:

The Associalion’s customer relalionship management
(CRM) system contains a vast quantily of dala. This fund
has been sel up 50 thal dala can be analysed and the
results used to imgrove the membership offering and
communication with our members.

Property expansion:

Following the recent refurbishment of the Association’s
headquarters. the Truslees have recognised that a
refurbishment will be required in the {uture o continually
meeling (he needs of our members and the profession.
The fund will increase as the reserves allow it. 50 as to
provide the approgpriate level of funding required for a
second complete relurbishment.

New activities fund:

This fund has been established for the Association (o
investigate new opportunities to improve the offering
1o our members, the profession as a whole and
subsequently benefit ihe general public.

Sustainability Working Group:

A Working Group has been set to explore and
implement sustainable praciices and operations (o
move the Association towards being carbon neutral.
itis expected that this fund will be needed and used
for the next 2 years.

Digitization project:

This fund is for the Association to enhance and improve
the current digital platforms and memaership offering.
ILis expected thal this fund will be needed and used

for the next 2 years.

Online forum:

The proposed online forum is a key part of the
Association's stralegy o enhance the current
community offering to members and other third
parties. The introduction of this forum will bring this
project together. ILis expected that this fund will be
needed and used for the next 3 years.

Vet GDP project:

Vel GDP is the preplacement for the PDP system
inroduced 5 years ago and is in line with the RCVS
quidelines recently set out and agreed. Il is expected thal
this fund will be needed and used for the next 2 years.
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23. Analysis of Net Assets between Funds

The detail below is for the year ended 31st December 2020.

GENERAL  DESIGNATED  RESTRICTED ' ToTAL

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS FUND FUNDS

3 £ 3 3

Tangible fixed assets 2264921 . - 2264921

Investments 6.538.564 2586505 1701506 10429575

Net cunent liabitities. (311457 B (37451 (778.908)
[ Net assets at end of year 8,262.028 2,386,505 1,267,055 11,915,586 ]

Please be aware that the Analysis of Net Assets between funds detailed below is for the year ending 3ist December 2019 and is
illustrated for comparative purposes.

GENERAL  DESIGNATED  RESTRICTED TOTAL

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS FuND FUNDS

3 € 3 €
Tangible fixed assets 2516153 - - 2516153
Irvesterients, 6,760,351 1971019 1622387 - 10353757
Net current liabilities A18.920 - 15.043) 267877

l Net assets at end of year 9.695.426 1971019 1471344 13.137.789 ]

24. Operating Lease Commitments

PROPERTY PROPERTY

2020 * 2019
3 I3
Less than one year - 429,199
Onc (o five years 1023859 1018./95
[ 1.023,859 LM&SNJ

‘The 2020 figure represents the Net Present Value of the current Congress contract that covers the event frorn March 2022 until
March 2024,

25. Company Status

The Association is a company limiled by guarantee. Every member of the Association, whilst a member. or within 1 year of ceasing
1o be a member. underiakes lo contribute Lo the net assels of the company. in the event of the same being wound up, for payment
of the debis and liabilities of the company contracted before ceasing 1o be a member. and of the costs and expenses of winding up.
Such member’s conlribution. as may be required, will not exceed £1.

*Photographs within were taken before Covid
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